
AMENDED AGENDA  
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
  TUESDAY, JANUARY 7, 2014  

7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 OATH OF OFFICE 
 MAYOR -  LUCINDA L. FESS 
 
 OATH OF OFFICE 
 VICE MAYOR -  WILLIAM D. VOGT 
 
 OATH OF OFFICE 
 THIRD WARD COMMISSIONER  -  JOSEPH H. WILSON 
 
 OATH OF OFFICE 
 FOURTH WARD COMMISSIONER -  JULIA A.  (JUDY) TERRY 
 
  
 

JOINT MEETING WITH WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES 
        

 
    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Approval of the minutes from the January 15, 2013 Joint Meeting of the Washington Township 
Trustees and Piqua City Commission 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

2. RESOLUTION NO. R-1-14 
A Resolution reappointing a member to the Board of Trustees of Forest Hill Union Cemetery 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

              REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

 
    CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Approval of the minutes from the December 17, 2013 Regular City Commission Meeting 

 
2. RES. NO. R-2-14 

A Resolution reappointing Julia (Judy) Terry to the Grow Piqua Now Board 
 



 2

 
OLD  BUSINESS 

 
3. ORD. NO. 18-13 (3rd Reading) 

An Ordinance amending Chapter 55.31 – Storm Water Fees established of the Piqua Municipal 
Storm Water Management 
 

4. ORD. NO. 20-13 (2nd Reading) 
An Ordinance repealing Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new Schedule A 
of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal Employees 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

5. ORD. NO. 1-14 (1st Reading) 
An Ordinance repealing existing Chapter 33 and enacting a new Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating 
to Employee policy 
 

6. RES. NO. R-3-14 
A Resolution authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids to make certain purchases 
during the year 2014 
 

7. RES. NO. R-4-14 
A Resolution retaining the services of the Auditor of State for the 2013 annual audit of the City of 
Piqua  

 
 PUBLIC COMMENT  

(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 





RESOLUTION NO. R-1-14 
 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A MEMBER TO  
                   THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF FOREST HILL UNION  

                               CEMETERY  
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, and by the Board of Trustees of Washington Township, Miami County, Ohio, 
the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Jim Hiegel is hereby reappointed as a member of the Board of 
Trustees of Forest Hill Union Cemetery for a three-year term to expire on December 
31, 2016, or until his successor is confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
     WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES 
 
     _________________________________ 
 
     _________________________________ 
 
     _________________________________ 
 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday, December 17, 2013 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION 
     Move to Executive Session to prepare for and review negotiations on compensation or other terms  
     and conditions of employment for City personnel 
 
     Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commission Wilson, to adjourn into Executive Session  
     at 7:34 P.M. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Vogt, Martin, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried  
     unanimously. 
      
     Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the Executive 
     Session at 8:00 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry.  Nay: None. Motion  
     carried unanimously. 
    
     Consent Agenda 
 
     Approval of Minutes  
     
     Approval of the minutes from the December 3, 2013 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
      
     Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt to approve the Consent Agenda.   
     Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Wilson. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously.   
           
      Old Business 
 
      ORD. NO. 16-13 (3rd Reading) 
      An Ordinance to make appropriations for the City of Piqua, Ohio for the year 2014 
 
      Finance Director/Assistant City Manager Cynthia Holtzapple stated the City is required to present  
      and pass the 2014 Annual Budget by the end of the 2013 year.  This is the third reading of  
      Ordinance No.16-13.  Commission reviewed the Department Budgets on November 14  
      and November 21, and no changes were made. 
 
       Public Comment 
 
       No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 16-13. 
 
      Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Ordinance No. 16-13 be  
      adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Martin, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried  
      unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared ordinance No. 16-13 adopted. 
 
      ORD. NO. 17-13 (3rd Reading) 
      An Ordinance repealing Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new  
      Schedule A-1 of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal Employees 
 
      Finance Director/Assistant City Manager Cynthia Holtzapple stated this is the third reading of 
      Ordinance No. 17-13.  The State of Ohio will increase the minimum wage effective January 1,  
      2014 from $7.85 per hour to $7.95 per hour.  The wages on Schedule A-1 have been changed to  



 2

      reflect this increase.  This is the only change that was made to Schedule A-1, said Ms. Holtzapple. 
  
     Public Comment 
 
     No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 17-13. 
     
     Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Ordinance No. 17-13 be  
     adopted. Roll call, Aye; Vogt, Fess, Wilson, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried  
     unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 17-13 adopted. 
 
     ORD. NO. 18-13 (2nd Reading) 
     An Ordinance amending Chapter 55.31-Storm Water Fees established of the Piqua Municipal 
     Storm Water Management 
 
     Devon Alexander, Storm Water Coordinator provided a brief overview of the reason for the 
     increase at this time. Increasing the rates was discussed at the Budget Meetings, and it was 
     determined the rates for Storm Water Utilities would be increased in 2014 from $5.20 to $5.70  
     per ERU, in 2015 from $5.70 to $6.20 per ERU, and in 2016 from $6.20 to $6.70 per ERU.  
    The rate increase will help cut projected deficits in the Storm Water Budget, with additional  
     revenues of about $71,000 per year, stated Mr. Alexander.  . 
 
    Public Comment 
 
     No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 18-13. 
 
    Ordinance No. 18-13 was given a second reading. 
 
     New Business 
 
     ORD. NO. 19-13 (1st Reading) 
     An Emergency Ordinance to make Appropriations for the City of Piqua, Ohio for the year 2013. 
 
     Finance Director/Assistant City Manager Cynthia Holtzapple gave a brief overview of the fund  
     changes to the 2013 appropriations. 
 
     Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that the rule requiring the  
     ordinance be read distinctly and fully on three separate days be suspended.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, 
     Martin, Vogt, Terry, and Fess. Nay, None.  
 
     Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 19-13 be 
     adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Vogt, and Terry.  Nay: None. Mayor Fess then  
     declared Ordinance No. 19-13 adopted. 
 
     ORD. NO. 20-13 (1st Reading) 
     An Ordinance repealing Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new  
     Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal Employees 
 
     Finance Director/Assistant City Manager Cynthia Holtzapple explained at this time they are in  
     negotiations with the bargaining units.  The City has offered all of the unions a 2% increase for 
     2014.  The Fire Officers and Fire Fighters have agreed to this wage increase.   This Ordinance 
     would increase the pay steps by 2% for all non-union positions which at this time represents 37 full- 
     time employees, stated Ms. Holtzapple. 
     
    Ordinance No. 20-13 was given a first reading. 
 
    RES. NO. R- 145-13  
    A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for City Membership to American Municipal   
    Power, Inc. 



 3

 
    Power System Director Ed Krieger explained AMP has been Piqua’s power supplier since 2007  
    and they have been satisfied with their service. The 2014 AMP dues (Service Fee A) were 
     increased to $82,500 from the 2013 level of $75,000.  However changes in AMP’s due structure 
     requires AMP to pay Piqua’s 2014 APPA membership fees, which exceeded $12,134 in 2013. 
 
    The Energy Board unanimously recommended to the Piqua City Commission to continue its  
    membership in American Municipal Power for 2014 at the November 26, 2013 meeting. 
     
    Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-145-13. 
 

    Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-145-13 be 
    adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin. Nay: None. Motion carried  
    unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-145-13 adopted. 

 
RES. NO. R-146-13 
A Resolution retaining the services of Cooperative Response Center, Inc. to provide Professional 
Customer Call Answering and Dispatch Services for the Power System 
 

    Power System Director Ed Krieger explained the Power System has been utilizing the Cooperative  
    Response Center (CRC) for after-hours call answering and dispatching, and have been totally  
    satisfied with the level of service provided. The cost has been consistent, and texting service is now  
    available, stated Mr. Krieger. 
 
     Commissioner Terry inquired if there is any information available on the number of telephone  
     calls received from the Piqua residents.  Mr. Krieger stated he would get the information and  
     forward it to the Commissioners.  

  
 Public comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-146-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-146-13 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Wilson, Terry, Martin, and Fess.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-146-13 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-147-13 
A Resolution authorizing the City Purchasing Agent to purchase #2 fuel on the open and spot 
market 
 
Power System Director Ed Krieger stated the City of Piqua purchases #2 fuel at various times 
during the year depending on how often the combustion turbine generators are operated. 
 
 Public comment 
 
 No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-147-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-147-13 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Martin, Vogt, Terry, and Wilson.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-147-13 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R- 148-13 
 A Resolution retaining the services of Sawvel and Associates to provide Professional Consulting 
Engineering Services for the Power System 
 
Power System Director Ed Krieger stated for over twenty years, Sawvel and Associates has 
provided the Piqua Power System with cost-of-service and rate design, and advised the City on 



 4

electric power supply and transmission arrangements, making recommendations concerning 
Piqua’s potential participation in AMP joint venture generating projects.  I would consider the 
employees of Sawvel and Associates to be an extension of the Power System staff, stated Mr. 
Krieger. 

        
     Public Comment 

 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-148-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-148-13 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-148-13 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-149-13 
A Resolution authorizing payment to the Dayton Power & Light Company to facilitate the elimination 
of costly and unreliable lines connecting Piqua Power System to DP & L Electric Transmission 
Facilities 
 
Power System Director Ed Krieger stated the Piqua Power System has recently completed 
construction of a new, highly-reliable, self-healing fiber optic network communication system.  The 
new network replaces an outdated, capacity limited, radial system built in the mid-198’s.   This will 
save the city approximately $45,000 a year, stated Mr. Krieger. 
 

    Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-149-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-149-13 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-149-13 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-150-13 
A Resolution opposing the passage of House Bill 5 by the Ohio General Assembly and encouraging 
the adoption of the changes recommended by the Ohio Municipal League 
 
City Manager Huff provided information regarding the reason for the letter of opposition of House 
Bill 5. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-150-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin,  that Resolution No. R-150-13 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-150-13 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-151-13 
 A Resolution authorizing transfers of cash from the General Fund to the other funds for the Fiscal 
Year 2013 
 
Finance Director/Assistant City Manager Cynthia Holtzapple explained the reason for the 
legislation. 
 
Public comment 
 
 No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-151-13. 
 



 5

Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-151-13 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Martin, Vogt, Terry, and Wilson.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-151-13 adopted. 
 
Res. No. R-152-13 
A Resolution authorizing transfers of cash from the General Fund to the other funds for the Fiscal 
Year 2014 
 
Finance Director/Assistant City Manager Cynthia Holtzapple explained this is companion to 
Resolution No. 151-13. 
 

     Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-152-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-152-13 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-152-13 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-153-13 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Collective Bargaining Agreement with 
Local Union 252, International Association of Firefighters, AFL-CIO-CLC (Firefighters) 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall gave a brief overview of the negotiations and the changes that were 
agreed on with the Collective Bargaining Agreement with Union 252, International Association of 
Firefighters, AFL-CIO-CLC Firefighters.  Ms. Wall stated they have agreed to the 2% increase in 
wages for the next 3 years beginning January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2016. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Bob Bloom. President of Local Union 252 came forward and thanked the City Staff, City Manager 
Huff, Fire Chief Mike Rindler, Finance Director Holtzapple,  Law Director Wall, and Human 
Resource Director Elaine Barton for working with the Union on the wage increase. This was the 
easiest negotiations he has ever been involved in, stated Mr. Bloom. 
 
Mayor Fess asked Mr. Bloom to pass on the Commissions appreciation to the Firefighters and Fire 
Officers for their cooperation in getting this completed in a timely manner. 
 
Law Director Wall stated she concurred with Mayor Fess’s comments as there was good 
cooperation at the table in the negotiations, and the City is very appreciative of the ability to get the 
contract completed. 
  
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-153-13 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye:  Fess, Vogt, Terry, Martin. and Wilson.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-153-13 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-154-13 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Collective Bargaining Agreement with 
Local Union 252, International Association of Firefighters, AFL-CIO-CLC (Fire Officers) 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall gave a brief overview of the negotiations with the Collective bargaining 
Agreement with Union 252 International Association of Firefighters, AFL-CIO-CLC Firefighters.  Ms. 
Wall stated they have agreed to the 2% increase in wages for 3 yearsbeginning January 1, 2014 
through December 31, 2016. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-154-13. 
 



 6

Mayor Fess stated the Commission appreciated the Firefighters and Officers working with the City 
on the negotiations. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-154-13 be 
adopted.  Roll call, Aye:  Vogt, Terry, Martin, Wilson and Fess.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-154-13 adopted. 
 
OTHER 
 

   Monthly Reports – October 2013   
 
   Monthly Reports were accepted.  

 
    PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
    No one came forward to speak at this time. 
     

City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Huff stated the City was nominated in three different categories for the Gov Fresh 
Awards and provided background on the awards and they included: City of the Year, Public Servant 
of the Year, and Mayor of the Year. Citizens got  the chance to vote and a panel of Judges will 
make the appointments.   ayor Fess stated the citizens are really the ones who earned these 
awards and the Citizens Government Academy has played a big part in this. 
 
City Manager Huff announced City Offices will be closed on Tuesday December 24, and 
Wednesday December 25 in observance of the Christmas Holiday. 
 
City Manager Huff stated he had some sad news to report, Economic Development Director Bill 
Murphy has given his notice of resignation as of January 10, 2014.  Mr. Murphy has taken a position 
in Columbus, Georgia.  City Manager Huff stated personally Bill has done an outstanding job for the 
City of Piqua, and it has been a pleasure to work with him, as he has a tremendous attitude and has 
been extremely helpful to him coming in as a new manager.  Mr. Murphy will surely be missed by 
many others as he has been promoting Piqua nationwide and worldwide. 
 
Commissioner Wilson asked if the Commission had any authority to vote down the offer and keep  

    Mr. Murphy here?  
    

Mayor Fess stated we all feel sad that Bill is leaving. But he has set the City of Piqua on an 
Economic Development path putting a lot of bricks in place, and when the strategic plan is 
completed we are going to have a roadmap to follow in the future and he has been very 
instrumental in getting this accomploished. 
 
Mayor Fess stated Bill is going to be the Vice President of Economic Development with the 
Chamber of Commerce in Columbus, Georgia, and wished him the best. 

 
  Commissioners Comments 
 
  Commissioner Vogt wished Mr. Murphy the best of luck in his new position further stating he will be  
  missed.  Commissioner Vogt wished everyone Happy Holidays, further stating he wanted citizens to  
  remember our country, as it is one of the few that we have the freedom to do that.  
 
  Commissioner Martin also congratulated Mr. Murphy stating he is sorry to see him leave. 
  Commissioner Martin wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy and Safe New Year. 
 
   Commissioner Terry wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year. 
 
   Commissioner Wilson wished Mr. Murphy good luck, further stating he will be missed by many. 



 7

 
 
     Commissioner Wilson announced several new businesses that have opened in downtown Piqua     
     Recently, and they include: 311 Drafthouse; Can’t Stop Running; Cabinets & More; and CJ’s  
     Pizza. 
 
     Commissioner Wilson asked citizens to consider doing something to help someone in their  
     neighborhood this holiday season, and in the future such as making a meal, shoveling snow, or  
     running errands.  Just remember to be a good neighbor, stated Commissioner Wilson. 
 
     Mayor Fess stated she attended the Open House at the Adult Care Center, and they really  
     appreciated everyone stopping in. 
 
     Mayor Fess wished Bill Murphy the best of luck in Columbus, Georgia, stating he will be missed. 
 
     Mayor Fess wished everyone a very Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.  
 
     Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the  
     Regular Commission Meeting at 8:50 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Vogt, and 
     Fess.  Nay, None. 

 
            
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   

     PASSED: ______________________   
 

     ATTEST: _______________________ 
               REBECCA J. COOL 
          CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-2-14 
                  
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING JULIA (JUDY) TERRY TO 
THE GROW PIQUA NOW BOARD 

 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the 
City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that:  

 
 SEC. 1: Julia (Judy) Terry is hereby reappointed as a member of the 
Grow Piqua Now Board for a term of (3) years to expire on December 31, 2016, or 
until her successor is confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 55.31 – STORM WATER FEES ESTABLISHED 
OF THE PIQUA MUNICIPAL STORM WATER MANAGEMENT. 

 
 WHEREAS, the raising the storm water utility ERU monthly fee will allow for additional 
revenue to help cover deficits forecasted in the annual budget.  
  

WHEREAS, the storm water department will be able to start preventative maintenance to 
the storm water infrastructure within the city. 
 

WHEREAS, the additional funding will relieve the need to secure funding sources from 
other areas for storm water capital projects. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SECTION 1: That the City of Piqua hereby amends Chapter 55.31 of the Piqua 
Municipal Storm Water Code as set forth below: (deleted language is indicated by 
strikethrough and proposed language is underlined) 

 

§55.31 FEES ESTABLISHED. 

(A) Subject to the provisions of this chapter, each and every owner and/or operator 
of residentially developed property and non-residential developed property shall 
have imposed upon them a storm water user fee.  The storm water user fee shall 
be a monthly service charge and shall be determined by the provisions of this 
chapter and the applicable equivalent residential unit (ERU) and ERU rate 
established hereunder, which provisions may be amended from time to time in 
accordance with the provisions of this chapter or by resolution of the 
Commission.  The established rate shall be contained within the Storm water 
Management User Fee Policy.  Effective with the initiation of the Storm water 
Utility, one (1) ERU is equivalent to $5.20 Effective January 1, 2014 the Storm 
Water Utility rate of (1) ERU is equivalent to $5.70 or up to 5,400 square feet. 
Effective January, 1 2015, the effective Storm water Utility rate will be, one (1) 
ERU is equivalent to $5.70 $6.20 or up to 5,400 square feet for the year 2015. 
Effective January, 1 2016, the effective Storm water Utility rate will be, one (1) 
ERU is equivalent to $6.20 $6.70 or up to 5,400 square feet for the year 2016,    
and will remain at those rates till further review.      

 
1st Reading 12-3-13     ____________________________    
2nd Reading 12-17-13    LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
           CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

 

Commission Agenda         Item #2  
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
December 3, 2013 
December 17, 2013 
January 7, 2014 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Ordinance to raise the Storm Water utility rate for 2014, 2015, 2016 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Devon Alexander, Storm Water Coordinator  
Department: Storm Water 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Per the request of the City of Piqua Commission, we would like to raise the 
2014 Storm Water utility rate from $5.20 to $5.70 ($0.50) per ERU, raise the 
2015 Storm Water utility rate from $5.70 to $6.20 ($0.50) per ERU, and raise 
the 2016 Storm Water utility rate from $6.20 to $6.70 ($0.50) per ERU. The rate 
increase will help cut projected deficits in the Storm Water Budget. The 
additional revenue would bring in about $71,000 per year.  
  

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:   
Expenditure $:   
Source of Funds:  
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the Ordinance for the rate increase 
2. Recommend other sources to raise storm water revenue 
3. Reject the Ordinance for the rate increase 
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
New rates would go into effect the first billing cycle of January 2014. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Storm Water Coordinator Devon Alexander recommends that the Ordinance to 
increase the Storm Water rates be approved.   

ATTACHMENTS   

 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  20-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SCHEDULE A OF  
CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA CODE AND ADOPTING 
A NEW SCHEDULE A OF CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA 
CODE, RELATING TO WAGES OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL 
EMPLOYEES 

  
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 
the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 

 
SEC.  1: Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, as adopted by 

Ordinance No. 25-12, is hereby repealed; and 
 
SEC.  2: Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code (appended hereto 

as Exhibit “D”) is hereby adopted;   
  
 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
1st Reading 12-17-2013 

          
          
                                               _____________________________ 

      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 3
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

December 17, 2013 
January 7, 2014 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-13  AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SCHEDULE A 
OF CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA CODE AND ADOPTING A NEW 
SCHEDULE A OF CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA CODE, RELATING TO 
WAGES OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  Elaine G. Barton 
Department: Human Resources 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
X Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

X Department Director;  Other:  
 

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

At this time, we are in negotiations with the bargaining units.  We have offered 
all of the unions a 2% increase for 2014.  The Fire Officers and Firefighters 
have agreed to this wage increase.     This Ordinance would increase the pay 
steps by 2% for all non-union positions which at this time represents 37 full-
time employees. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  Appropriated within the 2013 budget 
Expenditure $:   
Source of Funds: Various funds 
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt Ordinance No. 20-13 
2. Reject Ordinance No. 20-13 
3. Provide staff with alternate recommendation 
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

January 1, 2014 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Adopt Ordinance No. 20-13 to increase the pay steps of non-union positions as 
proposed to all bargaining unit members. 

ATTACHMENTS  Schedule A 

 





 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING EXISTING CHAPTER 33  
AND ENACTING A NEW CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA CODE,  

RELATING TO EMPLOYEE POLICY 
 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
 SECTION 1: Existing Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code is hereby repealed; 
 
 SECTION 2: Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code (appended hereto as 
Attachment “A”) is hereby enacted; 
 
 SECTION 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
 
            
       _______________________ 

LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 



 

Item # 4
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

January 7, 2014 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1 – 14  AN ORDINANCE REPEALING EXISTING 
CHAPTER 33  AND ENACTING A NEW CHAPTER 33 OF THE PIQUA 
CODE, RELATING TO EMPLOYEE POLICY 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  Elaine Barton, Human Resources Director 
Department: Human Resources 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
X Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

X Department Director;  Other:  
 

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  Group insurance appropriated in the 2014 budget 
Expenditure $:   
Source of Funds: Various funds 
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt Ordinance No. 1-14 
2. Reject Ordinance No. 1-14 and provide staff with an alternative 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

January 1, 2014 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff recommends the changes to Chapter 33 revising the date of the 
health insurance coverage to reflect the current benefit year, updating 
the life insurance amount paid for by the City to cover the employee’s 
base salary, and changing the date to receive personal time from May 
1st to January 1st as has been proposed in the union agreements and 
agreed to in the Fire contracts. 

ATTACHMENTS  Chapter 33 

 



 1

         Attachment “A” 
 

CHAPTER 33: EMPLOYMENT POLICY 
 
Section 
 
33.01  Classifications and compensation   33.10  Pay equalization of all employees 
33.02  Employment conditions    33.11  Job posting    
33.03  Holidays and Personal Days  33.12  Weekly pay  
33.04  Vacations    33.13  Jury duty  
33.05  Sick leave    33.14  Personnel regulations  
33.06  Leave of absence    33.15  Police and fire supervisors  
33.07  Funeral leave    33.16  Applicability  
33.08  Insurance   33.17  Wage schedules adopted  
33.09  Compensable injury pay      

§ 33.01 CLASSIFICATIONS AND COMPENSATION. 
 

The classifications and compensation of city employees shall be as set forth in the 
schedules attached and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.01) (Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01) 

§ 33.02  EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS. 
 

The following provisions shall apply to all Schedule A and A-1 employees except 
those covered under §33.15 of this chapter: 
 

(A) Merit increases and performance ratings. 
 
 (1)     Each of the pay ranges in Schedule A shall be divided into six steps, A through 

F. The minimum time in grade for each step before the employee is eligible for a merit 
increase is as follows. 
 

A - one year  
B - one year  
C - one year  
D - one year  
E - one year  
F - Top Step 

 
(2)  Each employee's performance will be rated by the employee's supervisor 

before the anniversary date the employee is eligible, by time in classification, for 
consideration for a merit increase. An employee must receive a performance rating of 
satisfactory or better to receive a merit increase. An employee denied a merit increase 
due to a less than satisfactory rating may request a reevaluation after 90 days from the 
denial of the merit increase. 
 



 2

(3)  Performance ratings will also be considered as a factor in advancing 
probationary employees to regular status and for promoting or transferring employees 
into new classifications. 
 

(4)  Employees at the top step of their pay range will have their performance 
rated by their supervisor annually. An employee who receives two consecutive ratings of 
less than satisfactory may be demoted or discharged. Performance ratings, when 
completed, will be discussed with the employee. The employee is required to sign the 
performance rating as evidence of the fact that it has been reviewed. A copy will be given 
to the employee. 

 
 (B) Overtime pay. Non-exempt employees shall receive one and one-half their 

regular rate for all hours worked over 40 per week. 
 

(1)  The city may in its discretion grant compensatory time to non-exempt 
employees in place of cash overtime compensation, at the rate of one and one-half hours 
compensatory time for each hour of overtime worked, provided that the employee agrees 
in writing, before the performance of the overtime work, to compensatory time in place 
of cash overtime, and provided further that all FLSA compensatory time requirements are 
satisfied.  No non-exempt employee may accumulate more than 240 hours of 
compensatory time. 
 

(2) Exempt employees are exempt from overtime payment. However, such 
employees may receive compensatory time on an hour for hour basis for hours worked in 
excess of 45 hours per week, upon the approval of the supervisor, department head or 
City Manager.  No exempt employee may accumulate more than 240 hours of 
compensatory time. Any compensatory time not used before separation from employment 
shall be forfeited. 
 

(C)      Call-in pay. Non-exempt employees required to report to work at a time 
outside the employee's normal work day will receive a minimum of two hours pay at one 
and one-half the employee's regular rate of pay. If the call-in requires more than two 
hours of work, then the employee will be paid for the hours actually worked at one and 
one-half the employee's regular rate of pay. 

 
(‘97 Code, § 31.02) 

 
(D)  Probationary employees. 

 
(1) New, rehired or promoted full-time employees will serve a one-year probationary 

period of close supervision and evaluation in order to assess their ability and adaptation. 
Probationary employment may be terminated at the will and discretion of the city without 
advance notice. 
 

(2) The city may extend an employee's probationary period for a specified additional 
period when the city determines that an extension is necessary to thoroughly evaluate the 
employee's ability to perform the full scope of assigned duties in an effective and safe 
manner. In these cases, the employee will be advised in writing of the extended duration 
of the probationary period before the conclusion of the initial probationary period. 



 3

 
(E) At-will employment. 
 

(1)  Completion of a probationary period or conferral of regular employee 
status shall not change an employee's status as an employee-at-will, or in any way restrict 
the city's right to terminate such employee or change the terms and conditions of 
employment. Nothing contained in this or other city policies or other material provided to 
employees in connection with their employment shall require the city to have just cause 
to terminate that employee, or otherwise restrict the city's right to terminate an employee 
at any tune for any lawful reason. 
 

(2)  An employee's at-will status shall not be modified by any statements 
made by any person or by any writing available to employees or applicants in connection 
with their employment. No document, whether singly or combined, shall create an 
express or implied contract concerning any terms or conditions of employment. 

 
(Ord. 55-97, passed 10-20-97; Am. Ord. 57-91, passed 11-4-91; Am. Ord. 18-95, passed 
5-15-95; Am. Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01; Am. Ord. 3-04, passed 1-20-04; Ord. 21-09 
passed 12-21-09) 

§ 33.03  HOLIDAYS AND PERSONAL DAYS. 
 
The following provisions shall apply to all Schedule A employees except those 

covered under §33.15 of this chapter. 
 

(A) The following days are recognized as holidays: New Year's Day, Martin 
Luther King Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, 
Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving Day, the day before Christmas and 
Christmas Day. 
 

(B) If a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday will be observed as a 
holiday. If a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be observed as a 
holiday. For employees who work other than a normal schedule, their first day off shall 
be their Saturday and their second day off shall be their Sunday. 
 

(C)  In order for an employee to receive pay for the holiday, the employee 
must work the employee's scheduled shift before and after the holiday. Employees on 
vacation, approved sick leave, or a leave of absence with pay (including paid funeral 
leave) shall be considered as working their regular scheduled day for purposes of this 
section. 
 

(D)  Eligible employees who are not scheduled to work on a designated 
holiday shall be paid holiday pay in an amount equal to eight hours work at their regular 
rate of pay. Eligible employees who work on a designated holiday shall be paid their 
holiday pay, plus one and one-half their regular rate of pay for all hours actually worked. 
 

(E)  Employees shall be credited with five personal leave days effective on 
May 1 January 1 of each year. Employees with less than one year's service with the city 



 4

on May 1 January 1 shall receive a pro-rated amount of personal leave. Personal leave 
days may be taken only on a day mutually agreeable to the employee and the employee's 
supervisor. Personal leave days not taken by the following May 1 December 31 will be 
forfeited. 
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.03) (Am. Ord. 16-90, passed 4-16-90; Am. Ord. 43-00, passed 12-18-00; 
Am. Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01) 

§ 33.04  VACATIONS. 
  

The following provisions shall apply to all Schedule A employees except those 
covered under §33.15 of this chapter. 
 

(A) For the purposes of this section, "service" shall mean service by a full-
time employee of the city or any other political subdivision of the state. 
 

(B)  (1)  Each regular full-time employee will receive two weeks vacation 
with full pay per one full year of service with the city, three weeks annual vacation with 
full pay after eight years of continuous service, four weeks annual vacation with full pay 
after 15 years of continuous service, and five weeks annual vacation with full pay after 25 
years of continuous service.  Employees hired after January 1, 2010 will receive two 
weeks vacation with full pay per one full year of service with the city, and three weeks 
annual vacation with full pay after eight years of continuous service and beyond.  
Vacation credit will be granted on a monthly basis as follows: 
 

(a) An employee entitled to two weeks shall be credited with 6.667 hours for 
each full month worked. 
 

(b) An employee entitled to three weeks shall be credited with 10 hours for 
each full month worked. 
 

(c)  An employee entitled to four weeks shall be credited with 13.334 hours 
for each full month worked. 
 

(d)  An employee entitled to five weeks shall be credited with 16.3334 hours 
for each full month worked. 
  

(2) Vacations must be scheduled with the employee's supervisor. The vacation 
period for each employee will begin on the first anniversary date of employment. In the 
case of retirement, resignation, dismissal, disability or death, an employee will be paid 
for all accumulated vacation credits. 

 
(C) (1) Vacation credits must be used during the anniversary year that 

immediately follows the anniversary year during which the vacation credits were earned. 
Credits not used within that time will be forfeited. The City Manager may, in special and 
meritorious cases, permit an employee to accumulate and carry over vacation leave for an 
additional time period as determined by the City Manager in his sole discretion. Vacation 
taken in any one continuous period shall not exceed six weeks. 



 5

 
(2) An employee may convert up to three weeks per calendar year to cash on 

an hour-for-hour basis if the employee notifies the city at least two weeks before the 
employee wishes the payment but no later than November 15th.  An employee hired 
after January 1, 2010 will not be permitted to convert vacation to cash.   
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.04) (Am. Ord. 53-87, passed 10-5-87; Am. Ord. 57-91, passed 11-4-91; 
Am. Ord. 35-94, passed 7-18-94; Am. Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01; Am. Ord. 21-09, 
passed 12-21-09) 

§ 33.05  SICK LEAVE. 
 
The following provisions shall apply to all Schedule A and A-1 employees except 

those covered under §33.15 of this chapter. 
 
(A) For the purposes of this section, "accumulated sick leave" may include up 

to 120 days of sick leave accumulated by a city employee during prior service with 
another political subdivision of the state. 

 
(B) Regular full-time employees shall earn and accumulate sick leave credits 

on the basis of one and one-quarter days for each completed month of service. Regular 
part-time employees shall earn and accumulate sick leave credits on a pro rata basis. 
Credit shall be accumulated by an employee on extended sick leave only if there is an 
intention to and a reasonable expectation of a return to work. Subject to the limitations set 
forth below, unused sick leave shall be cumulative beyond the year in which it was 
earned. 

 
(C) In addition to absences covered by the federal Family Medical Leave Act, 

sick leave may be used for absences due to injury, exposure to a contagious disease and 
illness in the employee's immediate family. IMMEDIATE FAMILY means spouse, 
parent (natural, step or in-law), children or other relative living in the employee's 
household. Sick leave will not be granted while an employee is on vacation unless proof 
of illness or injury is submitted. 

 
(D) An employee with six or more years of service with the city may convert 

up to a maximum of five days in excess of 60 days accumulated sick leave for the 
purposes of vacation in any year. This conversion will be on the basis of one day of 
vacation for each one day of sick leave, without regard to when the sick leave was 
accumulated or credited. The employee may, at his or her option, have the same sick days 
converted instead into cash on the same one-for-one conversion basis during December 
of each year. by request prior to November 15th.  An employee hired after January 1, 
2010 will not be permitted to convert sick leave to vacation. 

 
(E) For employees hired prior to January 1, 2001, accumulated sick leave up 

to 120 days will be payable upon permanent layoff or termination of employment other 
than retirement and death benefits (except discharge for theft or felony) on the following 
formula: 

 



 6

(1) Less than 8 years service: no conversion. 
 
(2) 8 years to 15 years of service: eight (8) hours pay for each three days of 

accumulated sick leave. 
 
(3) 16 years to 25 years service: eight (8) hours pay for each two days of 

accumulated sick leave. 
 
(4) Over 25 years of service: eight (8) hours pay for each day of accumulated 

sick leave. 
 
(F) For employees hired before January 1, 2001, conversion of unused sick 

leave credited to employees who receive retirement or death benefits shall be on the basis 
of one day for each one day accumulated up to a maximum of 1440 hours. 

 
(G) For employees hired after December 31, 2000, accumulated sick leave up 

to 480 hours will be payable upon permanent layoff or termination of employment other 
than retirement and death benefits (except discharge for theft or felony) on the following 
formula: 

 
(1) Less than 8 years service: no conversion. 
 
(2) 8 years to 15 years of service: eight (8) hours pay for each three days of 

accumulated sick leave. 
 
(3) 16 years to 25 years service: eight (8) hours pay for each two days of 

accumulated sick leave. 
 
(4) Over 25 years of service: eight (8) hours pay for each day of accumulated 

sick leave. 
 
(H) For employees hired after December 31, 2000, conversion of unused sick 

leave credited to employees who receive retirement or death benefits shall be on the basis 
of one day for each one day accumulated up to a maximum of 720 hours.  
 
 (I) For employees hired after January 1, 2010, conversion of unused sick 
leave credited to employees who receive retirement or death benefits (only) shall be on 
the basis of one day for each one day accumulated up to a maximum of 480 hours. 
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.05) (Ord. 53-87, passed 10-5-87; Am. Ord. 57-91, passed 11-4-91; Am. 
Ord. 35-94, passed 7-18-94; Am. Ord. 33-00, passed 10-2-00; Am. Ord. 13-01, passed 8-
6-01; Am. Ord. 21-09, passed 12-21-09) 
 
 



 7

 

 

§ 33.06  LEAVE OF ABSENCE. 
 
The following provisions shall apply to all Schedule A employees except those 

covered under §33.15 of this chapter. 
 
(A) Temporary leaves of absence with or without pay, for training purposes or 

for any other objective related to the employee's work, may be granted and renewed by 
the City Manager for such periods as the City Manager may consider justifiable within 
the limitations of the budget. 

 
(B) Leaves of absence without pay may be granted by the City Manager, for 

periods of time not to exceed one year, for any other reason that the City Manager may 
consider to be to the benefit of the city, including, but not limited to, leaves of absence by 
reason of military duties, and by reason of illness or disability not caused by or induced 
by the actual performance of official duties, in cases where the employee has exhausted 
accumulated sick leave benefits. Employees returning from military service will be 
placed in their former classification or one of equal pay range. Seniority will accrue when 
the employee is on active duty; however, vacation and sick leave do not accumulate for 
periods beyond six months. 

 
(C) Any leave of absence so granted may be extended or renewed for 

additional periods of time not to exceed one year for each extension. 
 
(D) If deemed necessary, the City Manager may require any employee who 

requests or is granted a leave of absence to submit to a medical examination, by an 
examiner selected by the city, to determine the medical need for the leave or the ability of 
the employee to perform the essential functions of the employee's position upon the 
termination of a leave of absence. A copy of the medical report will be furnished to the 
employee upon request by the employee.  
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.06) (Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01) 

§ 33.07  FUNERAL LEAVE. 
 
The following provisions shall apply to all Schedule A and A-1 employees except 

those covered under §33.15 of this chapter. 
 
(A) A regular full-time employee shall be paid for eight hours at the 

employee's regular rate of pay due to absence caused by death in an employee's 
immediate family. A maximum of three days shall be allowed under this section. 
IMMEDIATE FAMILY means spouse, parent (natural, step or in-law), child, 
grandparent, grandchild, brother or sister (natural, step, or in-law). Other relatives living 
in the same household as the employee shall be considered as immediate family. One day 



 8

may be granted for attendance at a funeral of the following relatives:  aunt, uncle, niece, 
or nephew . 

 
(B) A regular part-time employee will be granted one day to attend the funeral 

of an immediate family member. 
 
(C) Proof of death and of relationship of the deceased to the employee may be 

required before payment of funeral leave.  
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.08) (Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01; Am. Ord. 3-04, passed 1-20-04; Am. 
Ord. 21-09, passed 12-21-09) 

 

§ 33.08  INSURANCE. 
 
The following provisions shall apply to all Schedule A employees except those 

covered under §33.15  of this chapter. 
 
The city will provide health insurance benefits including dependent coverage.  

The benefits will include a high deductible health plan (HDHP) and, at the employee’s 
option, either a health savings account (HSA) or a health reimbursement account (HRA).   
The HDHP will have “network” deductibles of $2,000 for individual coverage and 
$4,000 for family coverage. 

 
(B) Employee HSA accounts will be funded by the City in the amount of 

$1,500 for individual coverage and $3,000 for family coverage for the 2013 4 plan year, 
by funding 1/12th of the annual total to be deposited the 1st of each month. Employee 
HRA accounts will be funded by the City in the amount of $1,500 for individual coverage 
and $3,000 for family coverage for the   2013 4  plan year, by funding the entire amount 
each year in January. 
 
An employee may be reimbursed up to a maximum of $400 if on a family plan and $200 
for a single plan each calendar year.  The employee and not the family member must 
participate in the activities below to be eligible for the reimbursement.  
 
Such reimbursement shall be based on participation in self-selected programs established 
by UnitedHealthcare for eligibility for the Bend the Trend Program, or similar program 
by identified by the health insurance carrier as a wellness initiative. 

 
Upon completion of an eligible program, the employee shall submit the required form 
and information to the Human Resources Director who will submit the request for 
reimbursement.  All reimbursement checks will go to the employee’s HSA (or HRA) 
account and not directly to the employee. 
 
 
 
 



 9

Eligible Activity Amount 
Reimbursed 

Special Conditions 

Biometric Screening Event $200 Eligible for reimbursement once each 
calendar year. 

   
Health Risk Assessment $50 Eligible for reimbursement once each 

calendar year. 
   
Wellness Coaching $50 Wellness Coaching is as indicated by 

the Health Risk Assessment.  Eligible 
for reimbursement once each calendar 
year. 

 
Registering on Anthem 
website health insurance 
website 

 
$50 

 
Eligible for reimbursement once each 
calendar year. 

   
Flu Shot  $50 Must be received at the City.  Eligible 

for reimbursement once each calendar 
year. 

   
Exercise $50 90 minutes of physical activity per 

week for each 8 week period 
completed.  Forms must be completed 
and turned in to Human Resources.  
The forms are available at HR 

   
BP of less than 130/80
    
Cholesterol of less than 
200 mg 
 
BMI of less than 25 

$100 To qualify for reimbursement, the 
employee must meet two of the three 
categories. 

   
Prescription Medications $100 Employee must switch from brand 

medication to generic.  Must begin 
only in January and continue for the 
calendar year.  Eligible for each 
prescription changed. 

   
Prescription Medications $50 Employee must switch from brand 

medication to generic.  Must be for a 
consecutive six month period.  
Eligible for each prescription 
changed. 

Annual Basic Physical $50 Eligible for reimbursement once each 
calendar year. 

Cessation Program $100 Employee must complete a program 



 10

as approved by the HR department 
and successfully have stopped 
smoking for a consecutive 6 month 
period.  Employee will be subject to 
random testing to verify continued 
success.  Eligible for reimbursement 
only one time during employee’s 
tenure.  

 
 

 
 (C) The City shall select the carrier for the HDHP annually after consulting 
with the Insurance Committee.   The City will make every effort to maintain comparable 
coverage.  

 
(D) Cost Sharing.   For the  2013 4 plan year, an employee will contribute 

15% of the City’s total cost of purchasing the employee’s HDHP and funding the 
employee’s HSA or HRA, by bi-weekly payroll deduction. 

 
(E) Option Out.   Eligible employees who decline the city offered health 

insurance benefits, will be entitled to receive a one-time payment per health insurance 
year (2013 4) of $2,000 for those eligible for family coverage and $1,000 for individual 
coverage. 

 

(F) The city shall provide and pay the necessary premium for group life insurance in 
an amount equal to two times (not to exceed $180,000) base salary (as of January 1st) 
for the following classifications: City Manager, Assistant City Manager, Finance 
Director, City Engineer, Utilities Director, Public Works Director, Power System 
Director, Human Resources Director, Health and Sanitation Director, Information 
Technology Director, Law Director, Economic Development Director, Police Chief and 
Fire Chief, $75,000 for exempt Manager/Supervisor positions, and $50,000 for all 
other employees. 

(‘97 Code, § 31.09) (Am. Ord. 16-90, passed 4-16-90; Am. Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01;  
Am. Ord. 3-04, passed 1-20-04; Am. Ord. 9-04, passed 5-20-04; Am. Ord. 29-08, passed 
12-15-08; Am. Ord. 21-09, passed 12-21-09; Am. Ord. 2-11, passed 4-5-11; Am. Ord. 
15-11, passed 12-20-11; Am. Ord. 5-12, passed 2-21-12; Am Ord. 27-12, passed 12-18-
12 ) 
 

§ 33.09  COMPENSABLE INJURY PAY. 
 
The following provisions shall apply to all Schedule A employees except those 

covered under §33.15  of this chapter. 
 
(A) Definitions. 
 



 11

COMPENSABLE INJURY. An injury to a city employee which occurs during 
the course of his or her employment and while the employee is performing assigned 
tasks, and which requires the employee to be absent from work, or which renders him or 
her unable to perform his or her normal duties, and which is determined to be 
compensable under workers' compensation regulations. 

 
INJURY PAY.  The pay provided under this section. 
 
SICK LEAVE.  Shall be the same as provided in §33.05. 
 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION REGULATIONS. The statutes of the state 

concerning workers' compensation, and the rules and regulations of the Bureau of 
Workers' Compensation and of the Industrial Commission of Ohio presently or hereafter 
in force. 

 
(B) If an employee suffers a compensable injury during the course of 

employment with the city and while performing an assigned task, the city will pay the 
difference between the employee's normal weekly wage and the weekly amount of 
compensation paid by the state Industrial Commission, for a period of time from one 
week after the date of injury up to six months after that date. The city may, at its 
discretion, elect to pay the injured employee the employee's full weekly rate of pay, to 
take the place of the employee's receipt of temporary total disability payments. 

 
(C) Accrued sick leave may be used for the first week of a compensable 

injury. 
 
(D) The city may provide and require an employee to perform other duties, 

within the limitations of the injury, in place of injury pay.  
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.10) (Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01) 

§ 33.10  PAY EQUALIZATION OF ALL EMPLOYEES. 
 
(A) All employees of the city who are not otherwise subject to Chapter 36 of 

this code shall have deducted from their salaries, wages, commission or other personal 
service compensation the applicable percentage of income tax as provided in Chapter 36, 
which sum shall be deposited in the income tax fund. 

 
(B) The administrator of  Chapter 36 of this code is authorized and directed, 

subject to the approval of the Board of Review, to adopt, promulgate, and enforce rules, 
regulations and agreements to the end that a nonresident employee of the city shall be 
obligated to pay the equivalent of only one municipal income tax.  
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.11) (Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01) 

§ 33.11  JOB POSTING. 
 



 12

Except as otherwise provided for those positions listed in Schedules B, C, D and 
E, job vacancies shall be posted for a minimum of three working days. When an 
examination is to be given, reasonable notice of the time and place of the examination 
shall be given.  
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.12) (Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01) 

§ 33.12 BI-WEEKLY PAY. 
 

The Director of Finance is authorized and directed to pay on a bi-weekly basis all 
full-time employees and part-time employees every other Friday for wages and salaries 
earned for the previous bi-week ending at midnight on the Sunday before pay day. Police 
Department employees shall be paid every Friday for wages and salaries earned the 
previous week ending at midnight on the Saturday before pay day.  The City may switch 
from paying employees on a weekly basis to paying employees once every two weeks, 
provided that the City gives employees at least 8 weeks notice before putting such a 
change into effect. 
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.13) (Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01; Am. Ord. 3-04, passed 1-20-04) 

§ 33.13  JURY DUTY. 
 
Schedule A employees, except those covered under §33.15 of this chapter, 

required to serve on a jury before a court empowered by law to require that service shall 
be excused from duty for the time required for that service, and shall be paid the 
difference between jury pay and regular hourly rate of pay. Employees must present 
proof of the amount of jury pay received before pay for the hours absent is granted, and 
must report for duty whenever released from jury service.  
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.14) (Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01) 
 
 

§ 33.14  PERSONNEL REGULATIONS. 
 
(A) The City Manager is authorized and directed to formulate, establish and 

promulgate such personnel regulations and procedures as the City Manager deems 
appropriate in the exercise of sound discretion to control the detailed terms and 
conditions of employment of employees in the classified and unclassified services of the 
city. 

(B) The policies and procedures established pursuant to division (A) shall not 
be inconsistent with the terms and conditions of employment of those employees 
established by the Charter and ordinances of the city or other applicable law. 
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.15) (Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01) 



 13

 

§ 33.15  POLICE AND FIRE SUPERVISORS. 
 
(A) The Chief of Police, Deputy Police Chiefs, and Police Lieutenants are is a 

supervisory and management employees covered by Schedule A. Police Lieutenants shall 
have the benefits provided by the Police Lieutenants "Letter of Understanding" as 
approved by the City Manager. Deputy Police Chiefs and the Chief of Police shall have 
the benefits provided by the Deputy Police Chiefs "Letter of Understanding" as approved 
by the City Manager. Deputy Police Chiefs and the Chief of Police shall not be paid 
overtime except as approved in a memorandum of understanding or collective 
bargaining agreement. 

 
(B) The Fire Chief is a supervisory and management employee covered by 

Schedule A, Assistant Fire Chiefs and the Fire Chief shall not be paid overtime except as 
approved in a memorandum of understanding or collective bargaining agreement. 

 
(C) Due to the unique operations of the Police and Fire Departments, the Chief 

of Police and Fire Chief, with the prior approval of the City Manager, are authorized and 
directed to formulate and adopt such personnel regulations and procedures as each Chief 
deems appropriate in the exercise of sound discretion to control the detailed term's and 
conditions of employment of employees in the Police and Fire Departments. The policies 
and procedures adopted pursuant to this section shall not be inconsistent with the terms 
and conditions of employment of such employees established by the Charter, the 
ordinances of the city, applicable collective bargaining agreements and other applicable 
law.  
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.16) (Am. Ord. 16-90, passed 4-16-90; Am. Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01; 
Am. Ord. 3-04, passed 1-20-04, Am. Ord. 6-09, passed 6-15-09) 
 
 

§ 33.16  APPLICABILITY. 
 
The provisions of this chapter shall be applicable to all employees of the city 

except as otherwise specified herein or in any collective bargaining contract authorized 
by the city.  
 
(‘97 Code, § 31.17) (Ord. 34-86, passed 7-21-86; Am. Ord. 20-97, passed 2-17-97; Am. 
Ord. 21-97, passed 3-3-97; Am. Ord. 22-97, passed 3-3-97; Am. Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-
01) 

§ 33.17  WAGE SCHEDULES ADOPTED. 
 
(A) The wages schedules listed in division (B) of this section are hereby 

adopted by reference and shall be treated as if set forth in full herein. Such wage 
schedules shall be maintained in the office of the City Manager. The City Commission 
may amend any schedule by adoption of an appropriate ordinance or resolution. Such 



 14

ordinances or resolutions and schedules shall not be codified herein, but the City 
Manager, or his or her designee, shall cause the appropriate change to be made to the 
applicable schedule so that each schedule shall remain current. Current copies of all wage 
schedules shall be available for public inspection. 

 
(B) The wage schedules of the city include the following: 
 
Schedule A:  All full-time management employees and any other full-time 

employees not specifically covered by any other schedule 
 
Schedule A-1:  All part-time, temporary, and seasonal employees 
 
Schedule B:  All full-time employees represented by AFSCME Local No. 984 

(Blue Collar)  
 
Schedule C:  All full-time firefighters/paramedics, Fire Captains, Assistant Fire 

Chiefs, (except Most Senior Assistant Fire Chief). 
 
Schedule D:  All full-time sworn Police Officers represented by the Fraternal 

Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc.  
 
Schedule E:  All full-time employees represented by AFSCME Local No. 984 

(Clerical -Technical) 
 
Schedule F: All full-time civilian employees represented by the Fraternal 

Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. 
 
Schedule G: All full-time sworn Deputy Police Chiefs and Lieutenants 

represented by Ohio Patrolmen’s Benevolent Association 
 
(‘97 Code, Appendix: Standard Pay Range) (Ord. 21-96, passed 4-15-96; Am. Ord. 39-
96, passed 8-19-96; Am. Ord. 47-96, passed 10-7-96; Am. Ord. 21-97, passed 3-3-97; 
Am. Ord. 22-97, passed 3-3-97; Am. Ord. 62-97, passed 12-1-97; Am. Ord. 2-98, passed 
1-5-98; Am. Ord. 598, passed 2-2-98; Am. Ord. 11-98, passed 3-2-98; Am. Ord. 6-99, 
passed 2-15-99; Am. Ord. 1499, passed 4-19-99; Am. Ord. 26-99, passed 8-16-99; Am. 
Ord. 32-99, passed 10-4-99; Am. Ord. 6-00, passed 1-17-00; Am. Ord. 9-00, passed 2-7-
00; Am. Ord, 15-00, passed 4-17-00; Am. Ord. 17-00, passed 5-1-00; Am. Ord. 29-00, 
passed 8-7-00; Am. Ord. 36-00, passed 11-20-00; Am. Ord. 13-01, passed 8-6-01; Am. 
Ord. 26-02, passed 10-21-02; Am. Ord. 4-03, passed 2-18-03; Am. Ord. 12-03, passed 6-
2-03; Am. Ord. 3-04, passed 1-20-04) 

  






































